
NOTE: These minutes are subject to Council 
 approval and are not verbatim; however, 
 tapes are available for public review. 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE ALBANY CITY COUNCIL 
 

IN REGULAR SESSION, 1000 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
 

MONDAY, JUNE 28, 2004 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 
Study session with the Planning & Zoning Commission on the proposed revisions to the 
City of Albany Zoning Ordinance and Proposed Amendments to the Land Use Element 
of the Albany General Plan. 
 
8:15 p.m. 
 
Vice Mayor Good who led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag called the regular 
meeting of the Albany City Council to order on the above date. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Council Members Good, Maris, Okawachi, & Thomsen  
Absent: Mayor Ely1   
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 

Beth Pollard, City Administrator; Robert Zweben, City Attorney; Amanda 
Bennett, Planning Clerk; Community Development Director Ann Chaney; 
Planning and Building Manager Dave Dowswell; Planning Consultant Ed 
Phillips. 

 
3. PRESENTATION/PUBLIC HEARING 
 

3-1. Proposed Revisions to the City of Albany Zoning Ordinance and Proposed 
Amendments to the Land Use Element of the Albany General Plan. 

 
  
 

                                                 
1 Vice Chair Good announced that Mayor Ely would be attending the meeting, and was expected before 
9:00 p.m. 



City Council Minutes  June 28, 2004 

 2 

Community Development Director Chaney introduced this agenda item by 
thanking the Planning and Zoning Commissioners, the members of the Zoning Code 
Revision Committee, the residents of Albany, and Planning Consultant Phillips.  She 
asked the Council to provide direction as to whether staff should prepare a consolidated 
draft of the proposed zoning ordinance revisions. 

Planning Consultant Phillips delivered the staff report. He acknowledged receipt 
by the Council Members of letters from: Helen Coxstein?, John and Ruth Gjerde, Bruce 
Somerfield, and Ken Freeman, the Albany Bowl owner, in addition to the letters included 
as Staff Report Attachment H-1. 

Vice Mayor Good opened the public hearing. James Carter, Chamber of 
Commerce, asked the City Council to hold off on this process until September, because 
of the complexity of the issues involved, and the absences of summer vacationers. Vice 
Mayor Good asked staff about postponing. Community Development Director Chaney 
expressed willingness to meet with Chamber of Commerce members to explain the 
complex issues. She noted that the public had been very involved over a lengthy period, 
and that there was a need for closure. Council Member Thomsen noted that the Council is 
meeting during the summer, and could work on this item, but hold it open until 
September for public input. 

 Bart Grossman, Madison Street, appreciated the compromises made by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to maintain more of a family neighborhood feeling on 
Kains and Adams. Mayor Ely arrived at this time. Mr. Grossman opposed multi-level 
parking structures on neighborhood streets, and supported lowering FARs. 

Frances Cotter, Key Route Boulevard, was concerned that the proposed 
commercial nodes had no limits on sizes of lots and buildings (other than height limits). 
She stated this could lead to uses such as parking lots, hospitals, hotels, clinics, and bars, 
which she opposed. She was concerned about traffic, parking, and crime. 

Ed Fields, Kains Avenue, opposed the San Pablo Avenue Vision Plan, and opined 
that although the Planning and Zoning Commission was compromising with the 
neighbors, staff continued to push commercial development. He opposed multi-level 
parking structures in any residential zone, and noted that was not addressed by the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration. 

Brian Parker, 1127 Garfield, opposed multi-level parking structures on Kains and 
Adams. He questioned the bae analysis, which presented a static model. He supported 
approval of revisions before the next election (this fall). 

Leon Rimov, 555 Jackson, reported that Kains Avenue would be a big sinkhole 
before long, due to lack of infrastructure maintenance. He also opined that the General 
Plan is the ruling document, and should always come first. 

Maureen Crowley, Kains Avenue, stated she opposed Target, Petsmart, Magna, 
Albany Commons, Portland Place, and the proposed development at 727 San Pablo. She 
pointed out that there is already plenty of vacant retail space on San Pablo. She stated 
Measure D does not work because exceptions are routine, and that people do not use 
parking lifts for storage of vehicles. She felt that the prospective noise, traffic, safety 
issues, and pollution, should require an Environmental Impact Report rather than a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration. She asked the City not to cut down the trees at the Gill 
tract, because they are a habitat for migrating butterflies. She opined that UC Berkeley 



City Council Minutes  June 28, 2004 

 3 

ought to pay for services the City provides to Albany Village. Ms. Crowley then 
displayed models to show the scale of the allowable heights and daylight planes. 

Alison Van Norman, 1048 Kains, opposed multi-story parking structures next 
door to homes. She questioned the economic feasibility of mixed-use development based 
on the vacant commercial spaces in existing projects.  

Clay Larson, 600 block of Adams, stated mixed-use was not working in Albany 
because the commercial spaces are too small. He suggested that to be economically 
viable, projects on San Pablo will require a FAR of 2.9, with at least .28 commercial, and 
that this scale of a project is not consistent with small town ambience. 

Robert Lieber, Kains Avenue, supported residential zoning for Adams and Kains, 
and opposed multi-story parking structures and commercial nodes. 

Kamala Appel, Stannage Avenue, stated that community members had put in at 
least 100 hours each. She asked the Council to read all of the letters and the Option E 
petition, in order to really hear the community and not just the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 

Myrna Wexler(sp) Kains Avenue, suggested underground parking rather than 
multi-story parking, even offering a bonus for developers who utilize underground 
parking. She recommended lowering maximum heights so that a bonus height would still 
not be too high.  

Kim Linden, 1109 Stannage, asked why there was a recommendation to rezone 
the Gill tract as commercial (if we value the trees). She noted submittal of a petition with 
1,447 signatures in favor of preserving the Gill tract. The trees are a gateway to Albany, 
provide oxygen, and a home to butterflies. 

Dave Miller, Kains Avenue, thanked City staff and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. He opposed multi-story parking. 

Francis Chapman, Madison Street, opposed multi-story parking. He stated that the 
Kains/Adams Neighbors had produced their own Vision Plan, and that it was available to 
the Council. He suggested that a requirement that 15% of units be affordable might be too 
high. He opined that developers should be encouraged to be creative. 

Eugene Phillips, Kains Avenue, stated that a contractor told him a four-story 
complex would be going up on the south side of Marin Avenue at Kains. He was 
concerned that there is already very limited street parking, because people drive to the 
neighborhood, park their cars, and then catch the bus to commute. He also stated that his 
street had not been resurfaced as often as Stannage, and that the pothole in front of his 
home has never been filled. 

Mayor Ely referred Mr. Phillips to the Community Development Department for 
information about the pavement management plan, and to report the pothole. 

Kristina Osborn, 800 Adams, thanked City staff, Council Members, and 
Commissioners for their work on the proposed zone ordinance revision. She opined the 
height limits and daylight planes were not low enough. She opposed parking structures in 
residential zones.  

Peter Coleman (sp) 600 block of Adams, opposed multi-story parking structures, 
and felt the proposed ordinance allowed buildings grotesquely out of scale with the 
neighborhood. 

Joan Larson, Adam Street, would like a reduction of density, height, daylight 
planes, and FAR, and opposed multi-story parking structures in residential areas. 



City Council Minutes  June 28, 2004 

 4 

Elizabeth Bell, Adams Street, wished this discussion had occurred before Albany 
Commons was approved. She complained about glare from the windows at Albany 
Commons. She opposed parking structures, because landscaping was not sufficient to 
mitigate the noise and pollution. 

Joanna Selby, owner of property on Kains, was concerned about the lack of street 
parking and the safety hazard of traffic. She was also concerned about air pollution, 
especially from the auto-body shop on San Pablo. 

Judith Haney (sp) 600 block of Adams opposed parking structures. 
Maureen Crowley stated that her neighbors would like resident parking stickers to 

be implemented. 
Jackie Issian(sp) Polk Street, stated that commercial space on San Pablo was not 

leasing up, so it was not a good time to build more. 
Mayor Ely closed the public hearing. Council Member Okawachi would prefer a 

consolidated draft from staff. Council Member Thomsen suggested holding another 
meeting on the subject prior to giving staff direction on the draft document. Council 
Member Maris recommended another look at parking structure heights, heights in 
general, and FARs.  

Council Member Good noted the inherent contradiction in opposing parking 
structures and complaining that there is not enough parking available. He pointed out that 
just because the residents on Kains and Adams have requested residential zoning for their 
neighborhood does not mean that that is what the whole City wants. Community 
Development Director Chaney suggested meeting at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, July 6, to 
continue working on this item. 

Mayor Ely asked staff to provide information on the state mandate to provide 
affordable housing, and on the need for long-term economic development. Council 
Member Thomsen asked staff to look at incentives for underground parking. Council 
Member Okawachi noted that the low water table may be prohibitive. Mayor Ely 
reminded everyone that they need to move the item along and not drag it out. Community 
Development Director Chaney suggested that July 6 being only a week away might 
prohibit staff from providing all of the requested information. 

Council Member Maris stated that the bae report had been challenged enough that 
it would make sense to ask them for a response, especially concerning “reasonable” 
development and/or the existing development. Council Member Good pointed out that 
this planning is for 30 years from now, not just for today. 

There was consensus to continue the public hearing on this item to July 6, 2004. 
 
4. OTHER BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENT OF EVENTS 

 
4-1. July 4th Celebrations will be held at Memorial Park, and will include the 

grand opening of the park improvements. 
 
4-2. City Offices will be closed on Monday, July 5, 2004, in observance of the 

July 4th Holiday. 
 
4-3.    July schedule of regular City Council meetings:  Tuesday, July 6, 2004 

and Monday, July 26, 2004. 



City Council Minutes  June 28, 2004 

 5 

 
9. GOOD OF THE CITY/PUBLIC FORUM 
 
 For persons desiring to address the City Council on an item that is not on the 
agenda please note that City policy limits each speaker to five (5) minutes.  The Brown 
Act limits the Council’s ability to take and/or discuss items that are not on the agenda; 
therefore, such items are normally referred to staff for comment or to a future agenda. 

Mayor Ely opened the Good of the City/Public Forum and asked if anyone would 
like to speak and there being no one Mayor Ely closed the Good of the City/Public 
Forum. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 10:16 p.m. – There being no further business before the City Council it was 
moved and seconded to adjourn the meeting. 
 Minutes submitted by Amanda Bennett, Planning Clerk. 
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 JON ELY 
 MAYOR 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 JACQUELINE L. BUCHOLZ, CMC 
 CITY CLERK  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


